
CityofLemonGrove
CityCouncil Regular Meeting Agenda

Tuesday, October6, 2020, 6:00p.m.  

VirtualMeetingviaZoomplatform
https://www.zoom.us/home?zcid=2478

Meeting Access # 619-825-3800
https://us04web.zoom.us/j/6198253800

CityCouncil
Racquel Vasquez, Mayor
Jennifer Mendoza, MayorProTem
JerryJones, Councilmember
DavidArambula, Councilmember
YadiraAltamirano, Councilmember

Apublicagendapacket isavailable forreviewontheCity’swebsite

PublicParticipation
Inaccordance withExecutive OrdersN-25-20, N-29-20andN-35-20paragraph 3, executed
bytheGovernor ofCalifornia onMarch17, 2020, andasaresponse tomitigating thespread
ofCoronavirus knownasCOVID-19, theRegular MeetingoftheCityCouncil scheduled for
Tuesday, October6, 2020, at6:00p.m. willbeavirtualmeeting – audioonly.  

Belowarethewaystoparticipate.  Foranyquestions contact theCityClerk’sOfficeat (619)  
825-3800.  

Members ofthepublicareabletoparticipate inthefollowingways:  

1.  Listen toaudioliveviazoom
2. WrittenPublicComment:  Whichwillbeaccepted byemailwiththesubject line

PUBLIC COMMENT ITEM #___ .  Email totheCityClerk
schapel@lemongrove.ca.govprior tothemeeting.  Thedeadline forthepublic
comment tobesubmitted isMonday, October5, 2020at5:00p.m.  Anycomment
received afterthedeadlinewillnotbereadatthemeeting, butwillbemaintained in
therecord.  

JointheMeeting
Before joiningaZoommeetingonacomputer ormobiledevice, youcandownload theZoom
appfromtheZoomDownload Center.  Otherwise, youwillbeprompted todownload and
installZoomwhenyouclickajoinlink.  

Prerequisites
EachmeetinghasaMeeting Access IDandPassword thatwillberequired tojoina
Zoommeeting.  #619-825-3800. IfyouhaveeNotification set-upitwillbeincludedon
youremailnotification.  Ifyouhavenotyetset-upnotifications forCitymeetings and
eventspleasegototheCitywebsiteandsignup.  
MeetingwillbeAudioonlyforallparticipants.  



CityofLemonGroveCityCouncilMeeting October6, 2020

1. OpentheZoomdesktopclient
2. Joinameetingusingoneofthesemethods:  

ClickJoinaMeeting ifyouwanttojoininwithoutsigning in.  
SignintoZoomthenclickjoin.  

3. Enter theMeeting IDnumberandyourdisplayname
4. Ifyou’renotsignedin, enteradisplayname.   

Allaudiowillbemuteduponentering.    

Themeeting audiowillbeavailable ontheCitywebsitewithin24hoursofthemeeting.  

PublicComment:    
Inaccordance withExecutive OrdersN-25-20, N-29-20andN-35-20paragraph 3, executed
bytheGovernor ofCalifornia onMarch17, 2020.  WrittenPublicComment:  Whichwillbe
accepted byemailwiththesubject linePUBLIC COMMENT ITEM ___ .  Email totheCity
Clerkschapel@lemongrove.ca.govprior tothemeeting.  Thedeadline forthepublic
comment tobesubmitted isMonday, October5, 2020at5:00p.m.  Anycomment received
afterthedeadlinewillnotbereadbutwillbemaintained intherecord.   

Process:    
1. EmailCityClerkyourwrittencomment.  IntheSubjectLineoftheemail indicate whether
comment isforPublicComment (itemnotontheagenda) orAgenda Item #.  

Participants addressing theCityCouncilbyemailareencouraged toprovide thefollowing
information:  

a) FullName; 
b) Contact Number;  
c) Address;  
d) Public Comment orAgenda ItemNo;  
e) Subject;  
f) Written Comments

2. IncludeComment – Comment islimiteduptothree (3) minutes.  Comment willbereadby
theCityClerkandtimedandifcomment extends longerthanthree (3) minutes itwillbetimed
out.   

Ifcomment isreceivedbutthereisnoindication astowhether itistobereadunderPublic
Comment oraspecific agenda item, thecomment willberetained intherecordbutnotread
atthemeeting.    

Currently publiccomment isonlybeingaccepted byemail tobereadbytheCityClerk.  City
Clerkemailaddress: schapel@lemongrove.ca.gov



CityofLemonGroveCityCouncilMeeting October6, 2020

CityofLemonGrove
CityCouncil Regular Meeting Agenda

Tuesday, October6, 2020, 6:00p.m. 
VirtualMeetingviaZoomplatform

TheCityCouncilalsositsastheLemonGroveHousingAuthority,LemonGroveSanitation District
Board, LemonGroveRoadwayLightingDistrictBoard, and

LemonGroveSuccessor Agency

CalltoOrder

PledgeofAllegiance:    

Changes totheAgenda:  

Presentation:  
UpdateonUndergrounding Projectpresented byDinahWillier, PublicAffairsManager
SDG&E

PublicComment:  

Note: Inaccordance withStateLaw, thegeneralpublicmaybringforwardanitemnot
scheduled ontheagenda; however, theCityCouncilmaynottakeanyactionatthismeeting.  
Ifappropriate, theitemwillbereferred tostafforplacedonafutureagenda.)    

Publiccomment willbereadintotherecordbytheCityClerk.  PerLemonGroveMunicipal
CodeSection2.14.150, eachcomment isalloweduptothree (3) minutes.  

CityCouncilOralComments andReportsonMeetings Attended attheExpenseoftheCity.  
GC53232.3 (d)) (53232.3.(d) statesthatmembersofalegislativebodyshallprovidebriefreportsonmeetings

attendedattheexpenseofthelocalagencyatthenextregularmeetingofthelegislativebody.)  

CityManagerReport:  

Consent Calendar:  

Note: TheitemslistedontheConsent Calendar willbeenacted inonemotionunless
removed fromtheConsent Calendar byCouncil, staff, orthepublic.)  

1.A. WaiveFullTextReadingofAllOrdinances ontheAgenda

Reference:  Kristen Steinke, CityAttorney
Recommendation: Waive thefulltextreadingofallordinances included inthis
agenda;  Ordinances shallbeintroduced andadoptedbytitleonly. 

1.B. CityofLemonGrovePayment Demands

Reference:  MollyBrennan, Administrative Services Director
Recommendation:  RatifyDemands

1.C. ApprovalofMeeting Minutes
September 15, 2020 Regular Meeting

Reference:  ShelleyChapel, CityClerk
Recommendation:  Approve Minutes



CityofLemonGroveCityCouncilMeeting October6, 2020

1.D. CityProclamation – National FirePrevention Week

Reference:  SteveSwaney, FireChief
Recommendation:  Proclaim theWeekofOctober4-10, 2020, “National Fire
Prevention Week” within theCityofLemonGrove.  

1.E. AwardaProfessional Services Agreement forCityInspection Services with
Infrastructure Engineering Corporation

Reference: MikeJames, Assistant CityManager / PublicWorksDirector
Recommendation:  AdoptResolution entitled, “Resolution oftheCityCouncilof
theCityofLemonGrove, California, Approving anAgreement forProfessional
Services withInfrastructure Engineering Corporation forCityInspection
Services.”  

1.F.  StreetMaintenance Project – 6818Federal Boulevard

Reference: MikeJames, Assistant CityManager / PublicWorksDirector
Recommendation:  AdoptResolution entitled, “Resolution oftheCityCouncilof
theCityofLemon Grove, California, Approving theStreetMaintenance Project
Locatedat6818FederalBoulevard.”  

Reports toCouncil:  

2. 115TrustTransfer fromSanitation District (SanitationDistrict Item)  

Reference:  MollyBrennan, Administrative Services Director
Recommendation:  Authorize thetransferof $560,199fromtheSanitation District to
the115Trustforinvestment toward futureCalPERS obligations.  

3. Community Development BlockGrantCoronavirus Funds – NewAllocation

Reference:  Christian Olivas, Management Analyst
Recommendation:  Discussandprovidedirection tostaffontheuseofCommunity
Development BlockGrantCoronavirus newfundallocations.  

ClosedSession: 

A. CONFERENCE WITHREALPROPERTY NEGOTIATIONS
Government CodeSection54956.8
Property: Remnant Parcel locatedatLemonGroveAvenueandNorthAvenue,  
LemonGrove, CA91945
AgencyNegotiation: CityofLemonGrove
Negotiating Parties: CityManager, LydiaRomero, Assistant CityManager, Mike
James
UnderNegotiation: Instruction toNegotiate

B. LIABILITY CLAIM
Government CodeSection54956.95
Claimant:  Aguilar
AgencyClaimed Against: CityofLemonGrove

C.PUBLIC EMPLOYEE EMPLOYMENT
Government CodeSection54957
Performance Evaluation: CityManager



CityofLemonGroveCityCouncilMeeting October6, 2020

Adjournment

AFFIDAVIT OFNOTIFICATION ANDPOSTING
STATEOFCALIFORNIA )    
COUNTYOFSANDIEGO) SS
CITYOFLEMONGROVE)    

I, ShelleyChapel, MMC, CityClerkoftheCityofLemonGrove, herebydeclareunderpenaltyofperjury
thatacopyoftheaboveAgendaoftheRegularMeetingoftheCityCounciloftheCityofLemonGrove,  
California, wasdelivered and/ornoticebyemailnotlessthan72hours, beforethehourof6:00p.m. on
October6, 2020, tothemembersofthegoverningagency, andcausedtheagendatobepostedonthe
City’swebsiteatwww.lemongrove.ca.govandatLemonGroveCityHall, 3232MainStreetLemonGrove,  
CA91945.    
s/: ShelleyChapel

ShelleyChapel, MMC, CityClerk

Incompliance withtheAmericanswithDisabilitiesAct (ADA), theCityofLemonGrovewillprovidespecial
accommodations forpersonswhorequireassistance toaccess, attendand/orparticipate inmeetingsof
theCityCouncil.  Ifyourequiresuchassistance, pleasecontact theCityClerkat (619) 825-3800oremail
schapel@lemongrove.ca.gov.  Afullagendapacketisavailable forpublicreviewatCityHall



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

CITYCOUNCIL
STAFFREPORT

ItemNo.1.A

Meeting Date: October 6, 2020

Submitted to: Honorable Mayor andMembers oftheCityCouncil

Department: CityManager’sOffice

StaffContact: Kristen Steinke, CityAttorney

ItemTitle:    Waive theFullTextReading ofallOrdinances

Summary:  Waivethefulltextreadingofallordinances included inthisagenda. Ordinances
shallbeintroduced andadopted bytitleonly. 

Environmental Review: 

Notsubject toreviewNegative Declaration

Categorical Exemption, Section Mitigated Negative Declaration

Fiscal Impact:None. 

Public Notification:None.  



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

CITYCOUNCIL
STAFFREPORT

ItemNo.1.B

Meeting Date: October 6, 2020

Submitted to: Honorable Mayor andMembers oftheCityCouncil

Department: CityManager’sOffice

StaffContact: Molly Brennan, Administrative Services Director

mailto:MBrennan@lemongrove. ca.govm

ItemTitle: CityofLemon Grove Payment Demands

Recommended Action:  Ratify Demands.  

Environmental Review: 

Notsubject toreviewNegative Declaration

Categorical Exemption, Section Mitigated Negative Declaration

Fiscal Impact: None. 

PublicNotification:None.  



CityofLemonGroveDemandsSummary
ApprovedasSubmitted:  
MollyBrennan, AdministrativeServicesDirectorACH/APChecks09/03/20-09/25/20263,708.59
ForCouncilMeeting: 10/06/20

Payroll - 09/08/20131,204.69
Payroll - 09/22/20142,578.28

TotalDemands 537,491.56

CHECK CHECK
CHECK NOINVOICE NOVENDOR NAMEDATEDescriptionINVOICE AMOUNTAMOUNT

ACHAug20Sedgwick Claims Management Services, Inc09/03/2020Workers' Comp Claims - Aug'20351.54351.54

ACHRefill 9/1/20Pitney Bowes Global Financial Services LLC09/03/2020Postage Usage 9/1/20250.00250.00

ACH10948452LEAF09/ 03/2020Ricoh C3502 Copier System-PWYard - Aug'20160.51160.51

ACH4154920380/ 0920SDG& E09/09/2020Electric Usage:StLight7/31/20-8/31/201,836.973,094.37
3568860625/0920Electric Usage:StLight7/31/20-8/31/201,257.40

ACHSep8 2020Employment Development Department09/ 10/2020State Taxes9/8/209,086.139,086.13

ACHAug20Wells Fargo09/11/2020Bank Service Charge - Aug'20371.221,718.30
Aug20-CCCredit Card Processing-Mo.Svc -Aug'209.95
Aug20-CCCredit Card Transaction Fees- Aug'201,337.13

ACHAug20Home Depot Credit Services09/11/2020Home Depot Purchases - Aug'201,210.541,210.54

ACHAug26-Sep820Calpers Supplemental Income 457Plan09/11/2020457 Plan8/26/20-9/8/208,956.558,956.55

ACH67435995WEX Bank09/11/2020Fuel - FireDept - Aug'20258.39258.39

ACHSep8 2020US Treasury09/15/2020Federal Taxes 9/8/2029,213.4129,213.41

ACHRefill 9/14/20Pitney Bowes Global Financial Services LLC09/15/2020Postage Usage 9/14/20250.00250.00

ACHAug12-Sep8 20California Public EmplRetirement System09/23/2020Pers Retirement 8/12/20-9/8/20169,453.00169,453.00

ACHSep22 20Employment Development Department09/ 24/2020State Taxes 9/22/2010,957.7710,957.77

ACHSep9-Sep22 20Calpers Supplemental Income 457Plan09/25/2020457 Plan8/26/20-9/8/209,306.559,306.55

ACH369167Aflac09/ 25/2020AFLAC Insurance 9/24/201,684.421,684.42

13443L1072895UIAmerican Messaging09/09/2020Pager Replacement Program 9/1/20-9/30/2050.5150.51

1344415217131AT& T09/09/2020Fire Backup Phone Line- 7/22/20-8/21/2042.5042.50

1344511151Balestreri, Potocki & Holmes09/09/2020Legal Svcs: File1019-224 - thruJul'20815.95815.95

13446Boll WeevilBoll Weevil09/09/2020Small Business Grant Program5,000.005,000.00

1344709/08/2020California State Disbursement Unit09/09/2020Wage Withholding PayPeriod Ending 9/8/20161.53161.53

134484033795644Canon Solutions America, Inc. 09/09/2020Canon Maintenance-Copier Usage5/27/20-8/26/20383.48406.15
4033795645Canon Maintenance-Copier Usage5/27/20-8/26/20Fire22.67

134490000014887City ofElCajon09/09/2020Overtime Reimbursement - Aliano 8/8/201,474.011,474.01

1345022183City ofLaMesa09/09/2020Overtime Reimbursement - Brown 8/17/201,203.323,991.90
22183Overtime Reimbursement - Doig8/8/201,478.17
22183Overtime Reimbursement - Lopez 8/19/201,310.41

1345155087Daley & HeftLLP09/09/2020Legal Svcs: GHC00254821, 525.801,525.80

13452DirksNiteClubDirksNiteClub09/ 09/2020Small Business Grant Program10,000.0010,000.00

13453G & GAutoRepa2G & GAuto Repair09/09/2020Small Business Relief Grant Program/3575 Buena Vista Ave223.64223.64

13454101676Horton, Oberrecht, Kirkpatrick & Martha,APC09/09/2020Legal Svcs: GCH0019886123. 50123.50

13455Sep08 20ICMA09/09/2020ICMA Deferred Compensation PayPeriod Ending 9/8/20780.77780.77

134562162Law Offices ofJames F. Holtz, APC09/09/2020Legal Svcs: GHC00269563,182.503,182.50

134571032045Life- Assist, Inc. 09/09/2020EKG Paper, Lifepak60.15182.08
1032473HeartSync AEDPads, Adult121.93

13458IN1489316Municipal Emergency Services Inc09/09/2020SCBA Hydro Testing & Maint141.69141.69

13459WO-70265-1Office Advantage, Inc. 09/09/2020Station Supplies/Powder Cleanser14.9396.29
WO-70265-1Office Supplies -Fire81.36

13460Reimb8/ 3/20Ortiz, Phillip09/09/2020Reimb: Firefighter Rope & Rescue Class507.03507.03

134613010322681Parkhouse TireInc09/09/2020E210 Service/FlatRepair391.88719.53



3010322693E210 Service/FlatRepair327.65

13462PromexAuto2Promex Automotive09/ 09/2020Small Business Relief Grant Program556.90556.90

134638/3/20Purchase Power09/09/2020Postage forPackages 8/3/2020.0020.00

13464SimiFam/ LidosSimi Family Inc09/09/2020Small Business Grant Program - Lido'sItalian Foods10,000.0010,000.00

13465500445South Coast Emergency Vehicle Services09/09/2020Electric & Manual Regulators - FireVeh1,083.841,083.84

1346664601Tyson & Mendes, LLP09/09/2020Legal Svcs: GHC0019886700. 00700.00

13467VOIDWarren, Tasha09/09/2020** VOID **-- 

13468A PositiveChoiceA Positive Choice Resource & Referral Svcs 09/16/2020Small Business Relief Grant Program5,000.005,000.00

134695656180990AutoZone, Inc. 09/16/2020Tire Sealant - 2Tires/PWLoader30.70168.80
5656238769Battery - PW/Wood Chipper138.10

13470Sep2020BCC09/ 16/2020LTD Insurance - Sep'20722.181,363.43
Sep2020Life Insurance - Sep'20641.25

134715068155Bearcom09/ 16/2020Portable Radios Monthly Contract 8/22/20-9/21/20150.00150.00

13472Boll WeevilBoll Weevil09/16/2020Small Business Relief Grant Program5,000.005,000.00

13473Oct 2020California Dental Network Inc09/16/2020California Dental Insurance -Oct20342.12342.12

134747082821Certified Laboratories09/ 16/2020PW/Supplies/Gatorade240.79240.79

1347500076875Chicago TitleCompany09/16/2020Prelim Report - 7501 Davidson Ave, Lemon Grove750.00750.00

13476Chuys BarbershopChuy' sBarbershop09/16/2020Re-issue/Small Business Relief Grant Program4,500.004,500.00

134770000014888City ofElCajon09/16/2020Overtime Reimbursement - Laatsch 8/31/201,474.011,474.01

1347822184City ofLaMesa09/16/2020Household Hazardous Waste Event- 7/18/202,134.182,134.18

1347921CTOFLGN02County ofSanDiego- RCS09/16/2020800 MHZ Network - Aug'202,736.002,736.00

1348055307Daley & HeftLLP09/16/2020Legal Svcs:GHC00254824, 047.154,047.15

1348109032020560DAR Contractors09/ 16/2020Animal Disposal- Aug'20162.00162.00

134820088168- INDoggie WalkBags Inc09/16/202017,080Doggie WalkDispenser Bags w/Pouch1,126.731,126.73

13483Dr Kevin SwartzDr. Kevin Swartzberg Dental Corp09/16/2020Small Business Relief Grant Program6,000.006,000.00

13484First ChineseExpFirst Chinese Express Inc09/16/2020Small Business Relief Grant Program5,000.005,000.00

13485252773GB Auto Service, Inc. 09/16/2020Tires/Wheel Balance/Alignment - LGPW#19 '99FordF3501,162.961,162.96

13486INV1018488George HillsCompany09/16/2020TPA Claims- Adjusting/Other Services - Aug20343.20343.20

134879181432815HD Supply Facilities Maintenance, Ltd. 09/16/2020Disposable FaceMasks - COVID-19164.86495.22
9181829633Paper Bags - CDBG-CVFood Distribution244.18
9184706782Quick Clean Disinfectant - CDBG-CVFood Distribution Supply86.18

13488100414Horton, Oberrecht, Kirkpatrick & Martha,APC09/16/2020Legal Svcs: GHC0019886140. 00140.00

13489J & VNail J & VNailDesigns Inc09/16/2020Small Business Relief Grant Program5,000.005,000.00

13490Joseph CTruxawJoseph CTruxaw & Assoc Inc09/16/2020Refund/Joseph CTruxaw & Assoc Inc/Overpaid Business License Fee9.009.00

13491141512Knott' sPestControl, Inc. 09/16/2020Bee Control - RecCtr/3131School Lane195.00220.00
141627On CallPestControl/GnatControl - Sheriff StnPlants110.00
141627Discount- OnCallPestControl/GnatControl - Sheriff StnPlants- 85.00

13492LeftCoastCutsLeft Coast Cuts09/16/2020Re-issue/Small Business Relief Grant Program7,500.007,500.00

13493202008Lemon Grove CarWash, Inc. 09/16/2020Oil Change/AirFilter - LGPW#33Animal Control Van8/17/2071.8571.85

134941491094Liebert Cassidy Whitmore09/16/2020Prof Svcs: LE050-00005 thru12/31/19130.002,812.00
1506218Prof Svcs: LE050-00007 thru8/31/202,682.00

13495Aug20Lounsbery Ferguson Altona & PeakLLP09/16/2020Cost-Share Agreemt 03529-00005 Aug'201,165.0416,031.63
Aug20Code Enforcement 03529-00002 Aug'20166.50
Aug20General 03529-00001 Aug'2010,307.17
Aug20Affordable Housing 03529-00004 Aug'20132.80
Aug2003529-00014 Aug'2049.80
Aug2003529-00015 Aug'20132.80
Aug2003529-00016 Aug'202,068.92
Aug2003529-00017 Aug'20COVID-192,008.60

13496Mathnasium ofLGMathnasium ofLemon Grove09/16/2020Small Business Relief Grant Program/6955 Broadway5,000.005,000.00

13497165964ReissueMJC Construction09/ 16/2020CUPCCA # 2020-17 /Emergency Repair atMass St- Storm Drain34,980.0034,980.00

134989137Nguoi VietToday News09/16/2020Notice ofNominees inVietnamese 8/28/2060.0060.00

13499On Time LLCOn TimeLLC09/16/2020Small Business Relief Grant Program5,000.005,000.00

13500PR1000015186Pavement Recycling Systems, Inc. 09/16/2020CUPCCA # 2021-04MillACPavement 6500blkFederal Blvd4,264.524,264.52



13501Sep2020Preferred Benefit Insurance Administrators09/ 16/2020Dental Insurance- PPO -Sep'203,634.403,634.40

13502Proj AWARE Project AWARE Enterprises Inc09/16/2020Small Business Relief Grant Program5,000.005,000.00

1350332070974RCP Block & Brick, Inc. 09/16/2020Fast Setting Concrete Mix/SkateParkFence17.3017.30

135048059493155Staples Advantage09/16/2020Office Supplies & Copy Paper - CityHall378.67378.67

13505StokesStokes, Alexis09/16/2020Refund/Stokes, Alexis/Jumper Permit - LGP- 5/2/20COVID-1940.0040.00

13506104687188- 0001Sunbelt Rentals Inc. 09/16/2020Propane25. 9173.62
104924535-0001Propane14. 75
104968985-0001Propane16. 82
105140601-0001Propane16. 14

13507Systems WaterproofSystems Waterproofing Inc09/16/2020Refund/Systems Waterproofing Inc/Overpaid Business License Fees9.259.25

13508Tashas NaturalTasha'sNatural Haircare Solutions09/16/2020Re-issue/Small Business Relief Grant Program4,200.004,200.00

13509TBS ANMATBS ANMA LLC09/16/2020Small Business Relief GrantProgram/TheBuffalo Spot10,000.0010,000.00

1351000098651The East County Californian09/16/2020Notice ofNominees 8/21/20133.00133.00

135116893-20The Filipino Press09/16/2020Notice ofNominees inTagalog 8/29/20150.00150.00

135121-123601The Glass Company, Inc. 09/16/2020#2021-01CUPCCA #32-00-00-6275 - CityHallFront Door Replacement4,700.004,700.00

13513Tim Valine TimValine Construction, Inc09/16/2020Small Business Relief Grant Program5,000.005,000.00

1351472695043Vulcan Materials Company09/16/2020Asphalt/SS1H 4.5Gallon Bucket199.34995.73
72701400Asphalt/ SS1H 4.5Gallon Bucket395.77
72701401Asphalt/ SS1H 4.5Gallon Bucket201.28
72701402Asphalt199. 34

1351579430720Waxie Sanitary Supply09/16/2020Janitorial Supplies & Dispensers2,807.322,968.95
79432061Janitorial Supplies/Automatic Dispenser161.63

13516163391West Coast Arborists, Inc. 09/16/2020Tree Maintenance - 8/1/20-8/15/202,100.006,300.00
163392TDA TreeMaintenance - 8/1/20-8/15/204,200.00

1351709/22/20California State Disbursement Unit09/23/2020Wage Withholding PayPeriod Ending 9/22/20161.53161.53

13518Chuys Barbershop2Chuy' sBarbershop09/ 23/2020Small Business Relief Grant Program611.00611.00

13519IN249303Geotab USA, Inc. 09/23/2020Geotab G09Verizon Telematics Device/NFCTagReader539.40539.40

1352022232Grant & Kessler, APC09/23/2020Legal Svcs/WIT & SWRAJ - thru8/31/20577.45577.45

13521Sep22 20ICMA09/23/2020ICMA Deferred Compensation PayPeriod Ending 9/22/20780.77780.77

135221638Janazz, LLCSD09/23/20204 Laptops & 3Docking Stations6,554.896,554.89

13523Aug20SDG& E09/23/2020Gas & Electric 7/23/20-8/24/2023,109.5823,109.58

13524Sep22Southern CAFirefighters Benefit Trust09/23/2020LG Firefighters Benefit Trust9/22/20830.701,661.40
Sep8LG Firefighters Benefit Trust9/8/20830.70

13525Tashas Natural2Tasha'sNatural Haircare Solutions09/23/2020Small Business ReliefGrant Program/3468Citrus St4,295.254,295.25

13526STMT 8/24/2020US BankCorporate Payment Systems09/23/2020Thermocoupler/ FireStn13.9916,744.69
STMT 8/24/2020Supplies/Bottled Water - FireStn17.34
STMT 8/24/2020E10/E210 Replacement 20" Chains507.45
STMT 8/24/2020Name Decals/Helmet/Locker/BAMask - Ledford24.71
STMT8/24/2020Money Counter Machine & Counterfeit BillDetection/Finance91.36
STMT 8/24/2020Tactical Waist Bags - Fire61.02
STMT 8/24/2020Tower Fans298.56
STMT 8/24/2020Brooms/Federal Paving Project159.43
STMT 8/24/2020Protective Gear/Nitrile Gloves325.59
STMT 8/24/2020Webinars/ PW/Pesticide Applicator Professional Training80.00
STMT 8/24/2020CDBG-CVFood Distribution14,317.76
STMT8/24/2020Supplies/RecCtrBathroom Toilet Repair307.11
STMT 8/24/2020Daycamp Supplies26.51
STMT 8/24/2020Daycamp Activity/Amazing Dana Magic 7/23/20450.00
STMT 8/24/2020Title Request/Animal Control Vehicle63.86

263,708.59263,708.59



CITYOFLEMONGROVE
CITYCOUNCIL
STAFFREPORT

ItemNo.  1.C

Meeting Date: October 6, 2020

Submitted to: Honorable Mayor andMembers oftheCityCouncil

Department:  CityManager’sOffice

Staff Contact:  Shelley Chapel, CityClerk

Schapel@lemongrove. ca.gov

ItemTitle: Approval ofCityCouncil Meeting Minutes

Recommended Action:  Approval ofCityCouncil Meeting Minutes.  

Environmental Review:  
Notsubject toreview Negative Declaration

Categorical Exemption, Section Mitigated Negative Declaration

Fiscal Impact: None.  

Public Notification: None.  



MINUTES OFREGULAR MEETING
OFTHELEMON GROVECITYCOUNCIL

VIRTUAL MEETING VIAZOOM

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 15, 2020

TheCityCouncil alsositsastheLemonGroveHousing Authority,   
LemonGroveSanitation DistrictBoard, Lemon GroveRoadway LightingDistrictBoard,  

andLemonGroveSuccessor Agency.  

Regular Meeting oftheCityCounciloftheCityofLemonGrove, California, tookplacevirtually
pursuant toCalifornia Governor Executive OrdersN-25-20, N-29-20andN-35-20, andinthe
interestofpublichealthandsafety, wetemporarily tookactionstopreventandmitigate the
spreadandeffectsoftheCOVID-19virus byholdingCityCouncil andotherpublicmeetings via
virtualaudiomediaonly.  

CallToOrder:  
MayorVasquez calledtheRegular Meetingtoorderat6:01p.m.  

Present:   
MayorRacquel Vasquez, MayorProTemJennifer Mendoza, Councilmember DavidArambula,  
Councilmember JerryJones, andCouncilmember YadiraAltamirano

StaffMembers Present:  
LydiaRomero, CityManager, KristenSteinke, CityAttorney, MikeJames, Assistant City
Manager/PublicWorksDirector, MollyBrennan, Administrative ServicesDirector, NoahAlvey,  
Community Development Manager, MikeRand, SanDiegoSheriff’sLieutenant, SteveSwaney,  
FireChief, andShelleyChapel, CityClerk.  

PledgeofAllegiance wasledbyCouncilmember Altamirano.  

PublicComment wasreadintotheRecordbyCityClerk, Chapel:  None.  

CityCouncil OralComments andReportsonMeetings Attended attheExpenseofthe
City

Councilmember Altamirano attended thefollowing meetingsandevents:   
WeeklyCOVIDMeeting toUpdateMayors - Meeting HostedbySanDiegoCounty
Zoom – Hispanic Star

Councilmember Arambula attended thefollowing meetingsandevents:   
MTSExecutive Committee

MayorProTemMendoza attended thefollowing meetingsandevents:  
Volunteered fortheSANDAG LitterAbatement Committee
California LeagueofCalifornia Cities

MayorVasquez attended thefollowing meetings andevents:   
CALOESBriefingforMayorsandCityManagers Meeting
WeeklyCOVIDMeeting toUpdateMayors - Meeting HostedbySanDiegoCounty
FoodDistribution onSaturday mornings



CityofLemonGroveMinutes September 15, 2020

Consent Calendar:  
1.A WaiveFullTextReadingofAllOrdinances ontheAgenda. 
1.B Ratification ofPaymentofDemands
1.CApproved CityCouncilMeeting Minutes forVirtualRegularMeeting ofSeptember 1, 2020
1.DAdoptResolution No. 2020-3764, entitled, “Resolution oftheCityofLemonGrove, 

California, Extending theProclamation ofaLocalEmergency (COVID-19) intheCityof
Lemon Grove.”  

1.E Proclaim September asNational Preparedness Month

Action: MotionbyCouncilmember Arambula, seconded byCouncilmember Altamirano,  
toapprove Consent Calendar Items1.A-1.E.  

Themotionpassedbythefollowing vote:  
Ayes:    Vasquez, Mendoza, Arambula, Altamirano, Jones
Noes:    None.  

Reports toCouncil:  

2.FY2020-2021BudgetQuarterly Report

MayorVasquez introduced MollyBrennan, Administrative Services Director, whogave
thereportandPowerPoint Presentation.  

NoPublicComment Received.  

Action: Received andFiledReport.  

3.Discussion ofCouncilCalendar

MayorVasquez introduced Jennifer Mendoza, MayorProTem, whogave
openeddiscussion.  

NoPublicComment Received.  

Action:  CouncilDiscussion

CityAttorney Steinkeconvened themeeting intoClosedSessionat7:13p.m.  ClosedSession
wasconducted viaClosedSessionRoomseparate fromthe “VirtualMeeting.”  TheAudio
Recording fortheMeeting waspausedatthattime.    

ClosedSession:  

1.LIABILITY CLAIM
Government CodeSection54956.95
Claimant:  FarsonandLegg
AgencyClaimed Against:  CityofLemonGrove

Themeetingwasreconvened intoOpenSessionat7:20p.m., theCityAttorney Steinke reported
therewasnoactiontakeninClosedSession.    

2



CityofLemonGroveMinutes September 15, 2020

Adjournment:   

Therebeingnofurtherbusiness tocomebeforetheCouncil, themeetingwasadjourned at7:22
p.m. toameeting tobeheldTuesday, October6, 2020, asaVirtualMeeting, foraRegularCity
CouncilMeeting.  

Shelley Chapel, MMC
CityClerk

3



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

CITYCOUNCIL
STAFFREPORT

ItemNo.1.E

Meeting Date: October 6, 2020

Submitted to: Honorable Mayor andMembers oftheCityCouncil

Department: CityManager’sOffice

StaffContact: Steve Swaney, FireChief

ItemTitle:    CityProclamation - National FirePrevention Week

Recommendation: Itistherecommendation ofstaffthattheweekofOctober4-10, 2020be
proclaimed asNationalFirePreventionWeekintheCityofLemonGrove.   

Summary:  IntheUnitedStatesthefirstPresidential proclamation ofFirePrevention Weekwas
madein1925byPresidentCalvinCoolidge.   FireDepartments provide lifesaving publiceducation
inanefforttodrastically decrease casualties causedbyfires. FirePrevention Weekisobserved
eachyearduringtheweekofOctober9thincommemoration oftheGreatChicago Firewhich
beganonOctober8, 1871, andcaused immense devastation.  

Discussion: Thisyear’sNFPAFirePrevention Weekcampaign is, “ServeUpFireSafety inthe
TMKitchen!”.  Thiscampaign isintendedtoeducate everyoneabout thesimplebutimportant

actions theycantaketokeepthemselves, andthosearoundthem, safeinthekitchen.   
1. Twoofeveryfivehomefiresstartinthekitchenwith31% ofthesefiresresulting from

unattended cooking.  LemonGrove’sresidents shouldstayinthekitchenwhencooking
foodonthestovetop, keepathree-footkid-freezonearoundcooking areas, andkeep
anything thatcancatchfireawayfromstovetops.  

2. Whenthesmokealarmsounds, occupants mayhavelessthantwominutestoescapeto
safety.  Itisimportant tohaveahomeescapeplan, drawingamapofeachlevelofthe
home, showingalldoorsandwindows fordifferent waysout.  Residents shouldpractice
thehomefireescapeplanwitheveryone inthehousehold.  Onceresidents areout, they
shouldstayoutandnevergobackinsidethehomeforpeople, pets, orthings.  

Environmental Review:  

Notsubject toreview Negative Declaration

Categorical Exemption, Section Mitigated Negative Declaration

Fiscal Impact: None.  

PublicNotification: None.  

Attachment:  Proclamation.  



California
Proclamation

FirePrevention Week”  
October4-10, 2020

WHEREAS, fireisaseriouspublicsafetyconcernbothlocallyandnationally, andhomesarethe
locations where people areatgreatest risk from fire.  Home fires killed 2,630people intheUnited States in
2017, andfiredepartmentsintheUnitedStatesrespondedto357,000homefires.  Twoofeveryfivehomefires
startinthekitchenwith31% ofthesefiresresultingfromunattendedcooking.  LemonGrove’sresidents
shouldstayinthekitchenwhencookingfoodonthestovetop, keepathree-footkid-freezonearoundcooking
areasandkeepanythingthatcancatchfireawayfromstovetops; and

WHEREAS, whenthesmokealarmsounds, LemonGrove’sresidentsmayhavelessthantwominutes
toescapetosafety.  Itisimportanttohaveahomeescapeplan, drawingamapofeachlevelofthehome,  
showingalldoorsandwindowsfordifferentwaysout.  LemonGrove’sresidentsshouldpracticethehomefire
escapeplanwitheveryoneinthehousehold, includingvisitors; andteachchildrentoescapeontheirownin
caseadultscan’thelpthem.  Onceresidentsareout, theyshouldstayout, nevergoingbackinsidethehome
forpeople, pets, orthings; and

WHEREAS, LemonGrove’sresidentsareresponsivetopubliceducationmeasuresandareableto
takeactiontoincreasetheirsafetyfromfire, especiallyintheirhomes.  The2020FirePreventionWeek™  
theme, “ServeupFireSafetyintheKitchen™” effectivelyservestoremindustostayalertandusecaution
whencookingtoreducetheriskofkitchenfires.    

NOW, THEREFORE, I, RacquelVasquez, MayorfortheCityofLemonGrove, togetherwiththeCity
Council, doherebyproclaimOctober4-10, 2020, tobe “FIREPREVENTIONWEEK” intheCityofLemon
Grove.  WeurgealltheresidentsoftheCityofLemonGrovetochecktheirkitchensforfirehazardsandtouse
safecookingpracticesalways.  TheseeffortssupportthemanypublicsafetyactivitiesoftheCityofLemon
Grove’sfireandemergencyservices.    

thINWITNESSWHEREOF, IhaveheretosetmyhandandtheSealoftheCityofLemonGrovethis6
dayOctober, TwoThousandTwenty, andhavecausedthesealtobeaffixed.  

RACQUELVASQUEZ, Mayor

thSignedthis6dayofOctober,  
twothousandandtwenty.  



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

CITYCOUNCIL
STAFFREPORT

ItemNo. 1.E

Meeting Date:October 6, 2020

Submitted to: Honorable Mayor andMembers oftheCityCouncil

Department:Public Works Department

StaffContact:Mike James, Assistant CityManager/ Public Works Director

mjames@lemongrove. ca.gov

ItemTitle: Award aProfessional Services Agreement forCity Inspection

Services withInfrastructure Engineering Corporation

Recommended Action:  Adopt aresolution (Attachment A) approving aprofessional
services agreement forCity inspection services with Infrastructure Engineering
Corporation.    

Summary:Infrastructure Engineering Corporation (IEC) hasworked with theCityof
Lemon Groveonvarious projects since2016.  Mostrecently in2020, itscapacity with the
Cityhasincreased because ofan increase inthenumber oftotalprojects toinspect,as
wellasalimited availability ofthecity’sEngineering Inspector.  Currently, IECservesas
theCity’sprimary engineering inspector forallprivate development projectsand
secondary forallpublic development projects andencroachment permits.  Staff
anticipates that IEC’sworkload mayexceed theCityManager’sauthority forprofessional
servicesestablished at $30,000, ifallinspection work isincluded.  Staff ispresenting a
professional services agreement nottoexceed $50,000for theCityCouncil’sapproval.   

Background: Citystaff hashistorically reliedontheassistance ofaqualified on-site
engineering/construction inspector(s) toaugment full timecitystaffbyproviding
ongoing inspection services, project management services andconstruction management
servicespertaining tocapital improvement projects, development projects, grading
permits, construction permits, cityright-of-way, public improvements andunderground
utilities.  Inthelatterportion of2019, citystaffwaspresented withadilemma when its
onlyEngineering Inspector announced hisplantoretireattheendoftheyear.  Withthat
timeline inmind, staff created arequest forproposals (RFP) forcity inspection services
thatmirrored thedailydutiesoftheEngineering Inspector position.  When thesubmittal
deadline ofJanuary 9, 2020wasreached theCity received fourstatements ofqualification
SOQ) fromDudek andAssociates, Incorporated, IEC, Project Professionals Corporation,  

andTRCEngineers, Incorporated. Staffevaluated eachSOQ based onthecriterialisted
below: 

PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 1



1.Compliance withtheRFQ:  Comply withallinstructions andagree with theterms
andconditions oftheCity’sprofessional services agreement.   

2. Project Approach:  Detail themethodology andapproach eachcompany willuse
toperform theinspection services desired.    

3. Qualifications, Personnel andBackground:  Theexpertise, experience and
training ofeachcompany anditskeypersonnel.  Additionally, evaluate allprevious
experience insimilar fields, depthofthestaff, andanypriorworkhistory withthe
City.    

Theselection committee, comprised oftheAssistant CityManager / Public Works
Director, Contract CityEngineer, andthePublic Works Senior Management Analyst, 
concluded that IECwouldprovide thebestvalue totheCitybased onitsabilities, capacity
andskillsoftheproject team.  Furthermore, staff felt that thereputation, experience,  
efficiency andperformance onprevious projects with theCitywere allpositive andthere
wasnoreason whyCitystaff felt theCitywould notcontinue toreceive highquality service
ifIECwasawarded aprofessional services agreement.  The termofthispartnership was
notidentified intheRFQ.  However, staff recommends aperiod nottoexceed fiveyears,  
whichforthistypeofservice isappropriate.    

Alittlemoreabout IEC, itisalocal SanDiego County based firm, established in2002,  
withahistory ofproviding inspection services forclients throughout thesouthern
California region.  Many oftheteam members identified aspartoftheSOQhaveworked
with theCityonprevious projects andunderstand theCity’sstandards, aswellastheSan
Diego regional standards.  IECissolely focused toserving public entity clients anddoes
notseekworkwithprivate development companies.  Andlastly, theproject manager as
wellasotherstaff members arelocal toLemon Grove andavailable torespond
immediately toanyproject and/oremergency inthefield.  Other benefits ofpartnering
with IECincluded:  

IECisalready familiar withproviding city inspection services.    
Rather thanbeing limited tooneperson, anentire company isreadily
available toassist theCity.    
Increase inamount ofprofessional experience andcertifications from
company staff.   
Increase ininstitutional engineering knowledge fromtheentire County and
notlimited tojustoneemployee.    
Nolonger necessary tocreate asuccession planning fortheEngineering
Inspector positionbecause IECcanbackfill asneeded.    

Discussion:  When staff began thisRFPprocess, itwasdonesobased onthe
Engineering Inspector announcing hisretirement.  However, aftercompleting theRFQ
process theimpending retirement didnotoccur andtherefore staffwaspresented witha
choice tocancel theRFQprocess ormove forward andselect IECtosupplement theCity’s
inspection services moving forward.  Staff concluded that thelatter choice wasthemost
prudentoption because theCitywillbenefit fromIEC’sadditional professional expertise

PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 2



andwillhave inspection servicescoveredin instances when theEngineering Inspector is
notavailable.    

Since January2020,IEChasserved astheprimary inspector forallprivate development
project, public construction projects, andencroachment permit inspections citywide.   
Thatwasduetoanunanticipated leaveofabsence bytheEngineer Inspector, which
resulted inanincreased scopeofworkperformed byIEC.  InSeptember 2020, the
Engineering Inspector resumed all inspections ofpublic projects andencroachment
permits, among other duties asassigned.  Forthisreason, IEC’sscopeofworkwas
reduced toonly inspect private development projects which willnotexceed $25,000in
onefiscal yearwithout prior approval.    

Staff isrecommending thatanagreement with IECinclude thefullscopeofwork thatit
mayperform.  IfIECperformsthesame dutiesasitdidfrom January through September,  
staffestimates that thetotal agreement amount willnotexceed $50,000.  Because that
amount exceeds theCity’sManager’sauthority of $30,000, staff recommends thatanot
toexceed agreement isapproved bytheCityCouncil of $50,000.  Itisimportant tonote
that theagreement presented totheCityCouncil forapproval isretroactive toJanuary 1,  
2020 because IECfirstbegan inspectingprivate development andpublic improvement
projects.  An agreement wasnotsolidified atthat timeduetotheimmediate needto
inspect allprojects under construction throughout theCity.    

Inconclusion, IEC’spartnership with theCityhasproven tobeextremely valuable
because oftheincreased engineering inspection redundancyand highquality professional
services thatarereceived.  Should anunforeseen situation occur andadditional
inspection services areneeded, theCitywillhave thefullmenuofresources available from
IEC toprovide ample inspection coverage and/orproject-construction management
services forallCityprojects.  

FinancialSummary:  IEChasworked with theCityonvarious projects since 2016.  Most
notably itserved astheCity’sconstruction andinspection manager fortheLemon Grove
Avenue Realignment Project fromFY2016-17through FY2017-18.  Staff created thetable
below tohighlightthe totalamount paidtoIECsince FY2015-16.   

Fiscal Year Amount Expended
FY2015-16$ 7,830.00
FY2016-17$ 166,082.76
FY2017-18$ 259,958.34
FY2018-19 $ 29,205.01
FY2019-20$ 6,216.00
FY2020-21(thruSEP20)$ 3,552.00

Taking intoaccount costs fromFY2019-20through FY2020-21asabaseline forwork
performed fortheCity, specific tofield inspections only, staffestimates that IECwill
require abudget that ranges fromalowof $25,000toahighof $50,000.   

PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 3



Categories BudgetReimbursable Amount
Private Development$ 25,000$ 25,000
Public Development$ 25,000$ 0
Total$ 50,000$ 25,000

Asshown inthetotalamount above, while thetotalcontract with IECisanticipated tonot
exceed $50,000perfiscal year, there isatleast ananticipated $25,000that isrecoverable
through private development deposits orfees charged bytheCity.  IfIEConlyperforms
private development workallexpenditures willbereimbursable totheCity.    

Evaluation ofContinuing toPartner with IEC:  Staff hasoperated withahybrid (inhouse
andcontracted) engineeringinspectionsdivision with IECfor nearlyeightmonths.The
process hasproven tobeveryeffective andresponsive tosuccessfully manage all
engineering inspections needed.  Having deeper discussions with IEC, staffconfirmed
thatitwould liketocontinuethepartnership with theCityinanycapacity frominspecting
private development projects toexpanding tooverseeing allprivate, public, and
encroachment inspections citywide.  Staff recommends that thepartnership continue for
thenext fivefiscal yearswith theoption toextend thetermforsixadditional months not
toexceed June30, 2025.  Atwhich time, staffwillevaluate citystaffing availability and
IEC’sworkload todetermine howtheCityshould move forward tocontinue toprovide
engineering inspection services.    

Environmental Review: 

Notsubject toreviewNegative Declaration

Categorical Exemption, Section Mitigated Negative Declaration

PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 4



Fiscal Impact: InFiscal Year 2020-21consolidated budget, $50,000isavailable to
support theCity’sinspection services agreement.  Theanticipated funding sources to
support IEC’sagreement costsare listed below: 

Funding SourceFY 2020-21 Explanation
Available Budget

Private Development $ 25,000Reimbursement from
Deposits/Fees deposit accounts.   
General Fund -Engineering$ 8,334Support forpublic projects

andencroachment permitGeneral Fund -Streets$ 8,333
inspections.    GasTaxFund$ 8,333

Beyond FY2020-21, staffwill update theannual consolidated budget withanestimate of
howmuch itwillcostto accomplish all inspections during thenext fiscal year.   
Additionally, theprofessional services agreement includeslanguage thatauthorizes the
opportunity forIECtorequest anannual costescalation based onCPI-Uor2.5%,  
whichever amount islower.  Theincrease will takeeffect thefollowing fiscal yearno

stsooner thanJuly1and isnotautomatic.  Allnegotiations willbeauthorized and
approved bytheCityManager orherdesignee.   

Public Notification: None.    

StaffRecommendation:  Adopt aresolution (Attachment A) approving a
professional services agreement forCity inspection services with Infrastructure
Engineering Corporation.    

Attachments: 
Attachment A –Resolution

PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 5



Attachment A

RESOLUTION NO.2020 -   

RESOLUTION OFTHECITY COUNCIL OFTHECITYOFLEMON GROVE,  
CALIFORNIA APPROVING ANAGREEMENT FORPROFESSIONAL

SERVICES WITH INFRASTRUCTURE ENGINEERING CORPORATION FOR
CITY INSPECTION SERVICES

WHEREAS, since 2016theCityofLemon Grove hasworked withInfrastructure

Engineering Corporation asaproject manager andengineering inspection service

provider; and

WHEREAS, staffing availability intheengineering division required anincrease

inthecontract service from Infrastructure Engineering Corporation toassistwith

providing allengineering inspection duties onbehalf oftheCity; and

WHEREAS, Infrastructure Engineering Corporation isaprofessional

engineering company thathasextensive experience inSanDiego County, including

Lemon Grove, aswellasavaststaffing component thatcansupport allengineering

inspection services needed bytheCity; and

WHEREAS, since January 2020, Infrastructure Engineering Corporation has

provided fullservice engineering inspection services which includedprivate development

inspections, public project inspections, andencroachment permit inspections.  AndIEC

isinterested incontinuing itspartnership with theCity; and

WHEREAS, theCityCouncil finds itinthepublic interest toapprovea

professional services agreement with Infrastructure Engineering Corporation forfive

years, with theoption toextend theterm forsixadditional months, andanannual budget

nottoexceed $50,000inFiscalYear2020-21project budget.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BEITRESOLVED that theCityCouncil oftheCityofLemon

Grove, California, hereby approves:    

1. Approves aprofessional service agreement ( Exhibit 1) with Infrastructure

Engineering Company toprovide engineering inspection service; and

2. Establishes aninitial termoffiveyearsfromJanuary 1, 2020 through January

1, 2025with theoption toextend theagreement forsixmonths nottoexceed

June 30, 2025; and

PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 6



3.Programsafiscal yearbudget not toexceed $50,000; and

4.Authorizes theCityManager orherdesignee toexecuteand managethe

agreement, payments,term extensionsand anyannual costadjustments.   

PASSED ANDADOPTED on ______, 2020, theCityCouncil oftheCityof

Lemon Grove, California, adopted Resolution No. _______, passed bythefollowing

vote:  

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  

Racquel Vasquez, Mayor

Attest: 

Shelley Chapel, MMC, CityClerk

Approved astoForm:  

Kristen Steinke, CityAttorney

PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 7



Attachment A – Exhibit 1

AGREEMENT

BYANDBETWEEN

THECITY OFLEMON GROVE

AND

INFRASTRUCTURE ENGINEERING CORPORATION

THIS AGREEMENT isentered intothis7thday ofOctober, 2020byandbetween
theCITY OFLEMON GROVE, amunicipal corporation (the “CITY”), and
Infrastructure Engineering Corporation (IEC), aprofessional construction
management andengineering inspection firm (the “CONSULTANT”).  

RECITALS

WHEREAS, theCITY desires toemploy aCONSULTANT toprovide serve
astheCity’sengineering inspector and/orsupplement theCity’sinspection service for
ongoing inspection services pertaining tocapital improvement project, private
development projects, grading permits, construction permits, cityright-of-wayand/or
encroachment permits, public improvement projects andundergrounding utilities.   

WHEREAS, theCITY hasdetermined that theCONSULTANT isa
professional construction management andengineering inspection firmandisqualified
byexperience andability toperform theservices desired bytheCITY, andthe
CONSULTANT iswilling toperform such services.    

NOW, THEREFORE, THEPARTIES HERETO DOMUTUALLY AGREE AS
FOLLOWS:    

1. ENGAGEMENT OFCONSULTANT.  TheCITY hereby agrees to
engage theCONSULTANT andtheCONSULTANT hereby agrees toperform theservices
hereinafter set forth inaccordance withallterms andconditions contained herein.  

TheCONSULTANT represents thatallservices required hereunder willbe
performed directly bytheCONSULTANT orunder direct supervision ofthe
CONSULTANT.   

2. SCOPE OFSERVICES. TheCONSULTANT willperform services
assetforth intheattached Exhibit “A“.  

TheCONSULTANT shall beresponsible forallresearch andreviews related to
theworkandshallnotrelyonpersonnel oftheCITY forsuchservices, except as
authorized inadvance bytheCITY.  TheCONSULTANT shall appear atmeetings

PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 1



cited inExhibit “A“ tokeepstaffandCityCouncil advised oftheprogress onthe
project.    

TheCITY mayunilaterally, orupon request fromtheCONSULTANT, from timeto
timereduce orincrease theScope ofServices tobeperformed bytheCONSULTANT
under thisAgreement.  Upon doing so,theCITY andtheCONSULTANT agree tomeet in
good faithandconfer forthepurpose ofnegotiating acorresponding reduction orincrease
inthecompensation associated withsaidchange inservices. 

3. PROJECT COORDINATION ANDSUPERVISION.   

Assistant CityManager / Public Works Director hereby isdesignated asthe
Project Coordinator fortheCITY andwillmonitor theprogress andexecution ofthis
Agreement.  TheCONSULTANT shall assign asingle Project Director toprovide
supervision andhave overall responsibility fortheprogress andexecution ofthis
Agreement fortheCONSULTANT.  Vice President ofConstruction Management Services
thereby isdesignated astheProject Director fortheCONSULTANT.   

4. COMPENSATION ANDPAYMENT. Thecompensation forthe
CONSULTANT shallbebased onmonthly billings covering actual work performed.   
Billings shall include labor classifications, respective rates (page15oftheStatement of
Qualifications), hours worked andalsomaterials, ifany.  Thetotalcost forallwork
described inExhibit “A“ shallnotexceed fifty thousand dollars andzerocents ($50,000)  
thebaseamount) without prior written authorization fromtheCityCouncil.  Monthly

invoices willbeprocessed forpayment andremitted within thirty (30) days from receipt
ofinvoice, provided thatwork isaccomplished consistent withExhibit “A“ asdetermined
byandinthesolediscretion oftheCITY.  

TheCONSULTANT mayrequest anannual cost increase, based theprior
12-month period ending onJuneeachyear, fromtheU.S. Bureau ofLabor Statistics,  
Consumer Price Index forAllUrban Consumers (CPI-U) intheSanDiego Areaor2.5
percent, which everpercentage isless.  Thedetermined percentage willbeapplied toIEC’s

thsthourly rateasofJune30.  Anyincrease will takeeffect onJuly1.   

TheCONSULTANT shallmaintain allbooks, documents, papers, employee time
sheets, accounting records, andother evidence pertaining tocosts incurred andshall
make suchmaterials available atitsofficeatallreasonable times during thetermof
thisAgreement andforthree (3) years fromthedateoffinalpayment under this
Agreement, forinspection bytheCITY andforfurnishing ofcopies totheCITY, if
requested.  

5. LENGTH OFAGREEMENT.  Thestartdateofthisagreement
retroactively began onJanuary 1, 2020andwillexpire fiveyears lateronJanuary 1, 2025.   
Theagreement maybeextended,bytheCityManagerorherdesignee, forsixmonths notto
exceed June 30, 2025, during which timetheCitywillevaluate theexisting agreement to
decide iftheservice shallbefurther extended byCityCouncil approval oradvertising a
request forproposal.    

PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 2



6. DISPOSITION ANDOWNERSHIP OFDOCUMENTS. The
Memoranda, Reports, Maps, Drawings, Plans, Specifications andother documents
prepared bytheCONSULTANT forthisProject, whether paper orelectronic, shallbecome
theproperty oftheCITY forusewith respect tothisProject, andshall beturned over to
theCITY uponcompletion oftheProject, oranyphase thereof, ascontemplated bythis
Agreement. 

Contemporaneously with thetransfer ofdocuments, theCONSULTANT
hereby assigns totheCITYandCONSULTANT thereby expressly waives anddisclaims,  
anycopyright in, andtheright toreproduce, allwritten material, drawings, plans,  
specifications orotherworkprepared under thisagreement, except upon theCITY’s
priorauthorization regarding reproduction, which authorization shallnotbe
unreasonably withheld.  TheCONSULTANT shall, upon request oftheCITY, execute
any further document(s) necessary tofurther effectuate thiswaiver anddisclaimer. 

TheCONSULTANT agrees that theCITY mayuse, reuse, alter, reproduce,  
modify, assign, transfer, orinanyotherway, medium ormethod utilize the
CONSULTANT’ swritten work product fortheCITY’spurposes, andtheCONSULTANT
expressly waives anddisclaims anyresidual rights granted toitbyCivil CodeSections 980
through 989relating tointellectual property andartistic works. 

Anymodification orreusebytheCITY ofdocuments, drawings or
specifications prepared bytheCONSULTANT shall relieve theCONSULTANT from
liability under Section 14butonlywith respect totheeffect ofthemodification orreuse
bytheCITY, orforany liability totheCITY should thedocuments beusedbytheCITY for
some project other thanwhatwasexpressly agreed upon within theScope ofthisproject,  
unless otherwise mutually agreed.  

7. INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT. Both parties hereto inthe
performance ofthisAgreement willbeacting inanindependent capacity andnotas
agents, employees, partners orjoint venturers withoneanother.  Neither the
CONSULTANT northeCONSULTANT’ Semployees areemployees oftheCITY andare
notentitled toanyoftherights, benefits, orprivileges oftheCITY’semployees, including
butnotlimited toretirement, medical, unemployment, orworkers’ compensation
insurance.   

ThisAgreement contemplates thepersonal services oftheCONSULTANT
andtheCONSULTANT’ semployees, anditisrecognized bytheparties thatasubstantial
inducement totheCITY forentering intothisAgreement was, andis, theprofessional
reputation andcompetence oftheCONSULTANT anditsemployees.  Neither this
Agreement noranyinterest herein maybeassigned bytheCONSULTANT without the
priorwritten consent oftheCITY.  Nothing herein contained isintended toprevent the
CONSULTANT from employing orhiring asmany employees, orsubCONSULTANTs, as
theCONSULTANT maydeem necessary fortheproper andefficient performance ofthis

PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 3



Agreement.  Allagreements byCONSULTANT with itssubCONSULTANT( s) shall require
thesubCONSULTANT toadhere totheapplicable termsofthisAgreement. 

8. CONTROL. Neither theCITY noritsofficers, agents oremployees
shallhaveanycontrol over theconduct oftheCONSULTANT oranyofthe
CONSULTANT’ semployees except asherein setforth, andtheCONSULTANT expressly
agrees nottorepresent that theCONSULTANT ortheCONSULTANT’ sagents, servants,  
oremployees areinanymanner agents, servants oremployees oftheCITY, itbeing
understood that theCONSULTANT, itsagents, servants, andemployees areastothe
CITY wholly independent CONSULTANTs andthat theCONSULTANT’ sobligations to
theCITY aresolely such asareprescribed bythisAgreement. 

9. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAW.  The
CONSULTANT, intheperformance oftheservices tobeprovided herein, shall comply
withallapplicable State andFederal statutes andregulations, andallapplicable
ordinances, rulesandregulations oftheCITY OFLEMON GROVE, whether nowinforce
orsubsequently enacted.  TheCONSULTANT, andeachofitssubCONSULTANTs, shall
obtain andmaintain acurrent CITY OFLEMON GROVE business license prior toand
during performance ofanyworkpursuant tothisAgreement.  

10. LICENSES, PERMITS, ETC. TheCONSULTANT represents and
covenants thatithasalllicenses, permits, qualifications, andapprovals ofwhatever
nature thatarelegally required topractice itsprofession.  TheCONSULTANT represents
andcovenants that theCONSULTANT shall, atitssolecostandexpense, keep ineffectat
alltimes during thetermofthisAgreement, anylicense, permit, orapproval which is
legally required fortheCONSULTANT topractice itsprofession.   

11. STANDARD OFCARE.    

A. TheCONSULTANT, inperforming anyservices under this
Agreement, shallperform inamanner consistent with that levelofcareandskill
ordinarily exercised bymembers oftheCONSULTANT’ Stradeorprofession currently
practicing under similar conditions andinsimilar locations.  TheCONSULTANT shall
takeallspecial precautions necessary toprotect theCONSULTANT’ semployees and
members ofthepublic fromriskofharmarising outofthenature oftheworkand/orthe
conditions ofthework site.  

B. Unless disclosed inwriting prior tothedateofthisagreement,  
theCONSULTANT warrants totheCITY thatitisnotnow, norhasitforthefive (5) years
preceding, beendebarred byagovernmental agency orinvolved indebarment, arbitration
orlitigation proceedings concerning theCONSULTANT’ sprofessional performance or
thefurnishing ofmaterials orservices relating thereto.  

C. TheCONSULTANT isresponsible foridentifying anyunique
products, treatments, processes ormaterials whose availability iscritical tothesuccess of
theproject theCONSULTANT hasbeenretained toperform, within thetime

PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 4



requirements oftheCITY, or, when notimeisspecified, thenwithin acommercially
reasonable time.  Accordingly, unless theCONSULTANT hasnotified theCITYotherwise,  
theCONSULTANT warrants thatallproducts, materials, processes ortreatments
identified intheproject documents prepared fortheCITY arereasonably commercially
available.  Anyfailure bytheCONSULTANT touseduediligence under thissub- 
paragraph willrender theCONSULTANT liable totheCITY foranyincreased costs that
result fromtheCITY’slater inability toobtain thespecified itemsoranyreasonable
substitute within aprice range thatallows forproject completion inthetime frame
specified or,whennotspecified, thenwithin acommercially reasonable time. 

12. NON-DISCRIMINATION PROVISIONS.  TheCONSULTANT
shallnotdiscriminate against anyemployee orapplicant foremployment because ofage,  
race, color, ancestry, religion, sex, sexual orientation, marital status, national origin,  
physical handicap, ormedical condition.  TheCONSULTANT will takepositive action to
insure thatapplicants areemployed without regard totheirage, race, color, ancestry,  
religion, sex, sexual orientation, marital status, national origin, physical handicap, or
medical condition.  Suchaction shall include butnotbelimited tothefollowing:  
employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer, recruitment orrecruitment advertising,  
layoffortermination, ratesofpayorother forms ofcompensation, andselection for
training, including apprenticeship.  TheCONSULTANT agrees topost inconspicuous
places available toemployees andapplicants foremployment anynotices provided bythe
CITY setting forth theprovisions ofthisnon-discrimination clause.    

13. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION.  TheCITY may fromtimeto
time communicate totheCONSULTANT certain confidential information toenable the
CONSULTANT toeffectively perform theservices tobeprovided herein.  The
CONSULTANT shall treatallsuch information asconfidential andshall notdisclose any
part thereof without thepriorwritten consent oftheCITY.  TheCONSULTANT shall limit
theuseandcirculation ofsuch information, even within itsownorganization, tothe
extent necessary toperform theservices tobeprovided herein.  The foregoing obligation
ofthisSection 13, however, shallnotapply toanypartofthe information that (i) hasbeen
disclosed inpublicly available sources ofinformation; (ii) is, through nofaultofthe
CONSULTANT, hereafter disclosed inpublicly available sources ofinformation; (iii) is
already inthepossession oftheCONSULTANT without anyobligation ofconfidentiality;  
iv) hasbeenorishereafter rightfully disclosed totheCONSULTANT byathird party, but

onlytotheextent that theuseordisclosure thereof hasbeenorisrightfully authorized by
that thirdparty; or (v) isdisclosed according tolaworcourt order. 

TheCONSULTANT shallnotdisclose anyreports, recommendations,  
conclusions orother results oftheservices ortheexistence ofthesubject matter ofthis
Agreement without thepriorwritten consent oftheCITY.  Initsperformance hereunder,  
theCONSULTANT shall comply withall legalobligations itmaynoworhereafter have
respecting the information orother property ofanyotherperson, firmorcorporation. 

PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 5



CONSULTANT shallbeliable toCITY foranydamages caused bybreach of
thiscondition, pursuant totheprovisions ofSection 14. 

14. INDEMNIFICATION ANDHOLD HARMLESS. The
CONSULTANT shall indemnify, defend, andholdharmless theCITY, and itsofficers,  
officials, agents andemployees from anyandallclaims, demands, costs orliability that
ariseoutof, pertain to, orrelate tothenegligence, recklessness, orwillful misconduct of
CONSULTANT, itsemployees, agents, andsubCONSULTANTs intheperformance of
services under thisAgreement.  CONSULTANT’ sdutytoindemnify under thissection
shallnot include liability fordamages fordeathorbodily injury topersons, injury to
property, orother loss, damage orexpense arising fromthesolenegligence orwillful
misconduct bytheCITYoritselected officials, officers, agents, andemployees.  
CONSULTANT'sindemnification obligations shallnotbelimited bytheinsurance
provisions ofthisAgreement. TheCITYANDCONSULTANT expressly agree thatany
payment, attorney'sfees, costsorexpense CITY incurs ormakes tooronbehalf ofan
injured employee under theCITY 'sself-administered workers' compensation isincluded
asaloss, expense, orcost forthepurposes ofthissection, andthat thissection willsurvive
theexpiration orearly termination ofthisAgreement.  

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION. TheCONSULTANT shall
comply withalloftheprovisions oftheWorkers’ Compensation Insurance andSafety Acts
oftheStateofCalifornia, theapplicable provisions ofDivision 4and5oftheCalifornia
Government Code andallamendments thereto; andallsimilar stateorFederal actsor
lawsapplicable; andshall indemnify, andhold harmless theCITY anditsofficers, and
employees from andagainst allclaims, demands, payments, suits, actions, proceedings
and judgments ofevery nature anddescription, including reasonable attorney’sfeesand
defense costs presented, brought orrecovered against theCITYoritsofficers, employees,  
orvolunteers, fororonaccount ofany liability underanyofsaidactswhichmaybe
incurred byreason ofanywork tobeperformed bytheCONSULTANT under this
Agreement.   

16. INSURANCE. TheCONSULTANT, atitssolecostandexpense,  
shall purchase andmaintain, andshall require itssubCONSULTANTs, when applicable,  
topurchase andmaintain throughout thetermofthisagreement, thefollowing insurance
policies:    

A. Ifchecked, Professional Liability Insurance (errors andomissions)  
withminimum limits of $1,000,000peroccurrence and $2,000,000aggregate.  

B. Automobile insurance covering allbodily injury andproperty
damage incurred during theperformance ofthisAgreement, withaminimum coverage
of $1,000,000combined single limitperaccident.  Suchautomobile insurance shall
include non-owned vehicles.    

PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 6



C. Comprehensive general liability insurance, withminimum limitsof
1,000,000combined single limitperoccurrence, covering allbodily injuryandproperty

damage arising outofitsoperation underthis Agreement.  

D. Workers’ compensation insurance covering allofCONSULTANT’ s
employees.   

E. Theaforesaid policies shall constitute primary insurance astothe
CITY, itsofficers, employees, andvolunteers, sothatanyother policies heldbytheCITY
shallnotcontribute toanylossunder said insurance.  Saidpolicies shallprovide forthirty
30) daysprior written notice totheCITYofcancellation ormaterial change.    

F. Saidpolicies, except fortheprofessional liability andworker’s
compensation policies, shall name theCITY anditsofficers, agents andemployees as
additional insureds.   

G. Ifrequired insurance coverage isprovided ona “claims made” rather
than “occurrence” form, theCONSULTANT shallmaintain such insurance coverage for
three years afterexpiration oftheterm (andanyextensions) ofthisAgreement.    

H. Anyaggregate insurance limits mustapply solely tothisAgreement.   

I. Insurance shallbewritten withonlyCalifornia admitted companies
which holdacurrent policy holder’salphabetic andfinancial sizecategory ratingofnot
lessthanAVIIIaccording tothecurrent Best’sKeyRating Guide, oracompany equal
financial stability that isapproved bytheCITY.  

J. ThisAgreement shallnottakeeffect until certificate(s) orother
sufficient proof that these insurance provisions havebeencomplied with, arefiledwith
andapproved bytheCITY.  IftheCONSULTANT does notkeepallofsuch insurance
policies infull forceandeffectatalltimes during theterms ofthisAgreement, theCITY
mayelect totreat thefailure tomaintain therequisite insurance asabreach ofthis
Agreement and terminate theAgreement asprovided herein.   

17. LEGAL FEES.  Ifanypartybrings asuitoraction against theother
partyarising from anybreach ofanyofthecovenants oragreements oranyinaccuracies
inanyoftherepresentations andwarranties onthepartoftheother partyarising outof
thisAgreement, theninthatevent, theprevailing party insuchaction ordispute, whether
byfinal judgment orout-of-court settlement, shallbeentitled tohave andrecover ofand
fromtheother partyallreasonable costsandexpenses ofsuit, including reasonable
attorneys’ fees. 

Forpurposes ofdetermining whoistobeconsidered theprevailing party, it
isstipulated thatattorney’sfees incurred intheprosecution ordefense oftheaction or
suitshallnotbeconsidered indetermining theamount ofthejudgment oraward.   
Attorney’sfeestotheprevailing party ifother thantheCITY shall, inaddition, belimited
totheamount ofattorney’sfees incurred bytheCITY initsprosecution ordefense ofthe

PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 7



action, irrespective oftheactual amount ofattorney’sfees incurred bytheprevailing
party. 

18. MEDIATION/ARBITRATION.   Ifadispute arises outofor
relates tothisAgreement, orthebreach thereof, theparties agree first totry, ingood faith,  
tosettle thedispute bymutual negotiation between theprinciples, andfailing that
through nonbinding mediation inSanDiego, California, inaccordance with the
Commercial Mediation RulesoftheAmerican Arbitration Association (the “AAA”).  The
costsofmediation shallbeborne equally bytheparties.   

19. TERMINATION. A. ThisAgreement maybeterminated withor
without cause bytheCITY.  Termination without cause shallbeeffective onlyupon30- 
day’swritten notice totheCONSULTANT.  During said30-dayperiod theCONSULTANT
shallperform allservices inaccordance withthisAgreement. TheCONSULTANT may
terminate thisagreement upon thirty (30) days priornotice intheeventofacontinuing
andmaterial breach bytheCityofitsobligations under thisAgreement including butnot
limited topayment ofinvoices.   

B. This Agreement mayalsobeterminated immediately bytheCITYfor
cause intheeventofamaterial breach ofthisAgreement that isnotcured totheCity’s
satisfaction within aten (10) daypriorcure period, ormaterial misrepresentation bythe
CONSULTANT inconnection with theformation ofthisAgreement ortheperformance
ofservices, orthefailure toperform services asdirected bytheCITY.    

C. Termination withorwithout cause shallbeeffected bydelivery of
written Notice ofTermination totheCONSULTANT asprovided forherein.   

D. Intheeventoftermination, allfinished orunfinished Memoranda
Reports, Maps, Drawings, Plans, Specifications andother documents prepared bythe
CONSULTANT, whether paperorelectronic, shall immediately become theproperty of
andbedelivered totheCITY, andtheCONSULTANT shallbeentitled toreceive justand
equitable compensation foranyworksatisfactorily completed onsuch documents and
other materials uptotheeffective dateoftheNotice ofTermination, nottoexceed the
amounts payable hereunder, and lessanydamages caused theCITYbythe
CONSULTANT’ sbreach, ifany.  Thereafter, ownership ofsaidwritten material shall vest
intheCITY allrights setforth inSection 6.  

E. TheCITY further reserves theright toimmediately terminate this
Agreement upon: (1) thefilingofapetition inbankruptcy affecting theCONSULTANT;  
2) areorganization oftheCONSULTANT forthebenefit ofcreditors; or (3) abusiness

reorganization, change inbusiness name orchange inbusiness statusofthe
CONSULTANT.  

20. NOTICES. Allnotices orother communications required or
permitted hereunder shallbeinwriting, andshallbepersonally delivered; orsent by
overnight mail (Federal Express orthelike); orsentbyregistered orcertified mail,  

PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 8



postage prepaid, return receipt requested; orsentbyordinary mail, postage prepaid; or
telegraphed orcabled; ordelivered orsentbytelex, telecopy, facsimile orfax; andshall
bedeemed received upon theearlier of (i) ifpersonally delivered, thedateofdelivery to
theaddress oftheperson toreceive suchnotice, (ii) ifsentbyovernight mail, thebusiness
dayfollowing itsdeposit insuchovernight mail facility, (iii) ifmailed byregistered,  
certified orordinary mail, five (5) days (ten (10) days iftheaddress isoutside theStateof
California) after thedateofdeposit inapostoffice, mailbox, mailchute, orother like
facility regularly maintained bytheUnited States Postal Service, (iv) ifgivenbytelegraph
orcable, when delivered tothetelegraph company withcharges prepaid, or (v) ifgiven by
telex, telecopy, facsimile orfax, when sent.  Anynotice, request, demand, direction or
other communication delivered orsentasspecified above shallbedirected tothe
following persons:   

TotheCITY:   Assistant CityManager / Public Works Director

CityofLemon Grove

3232 MainStreet

Lemon Grove, CA 91945-1701

TotheCONSULTANT: VicePresident ofConstruction Management Services

Infrastructure Engineering Corporation

14271 Danielson Street

Poway, CA92064

Notice ofchange ofaddress shall begivenbywritten notice inthemanner
specified inthisSection.  Rejection orother refusal toaccept ortheinability todeliver
because ofchanged address ofwhich nonotice wasgiven shallbedeemed toconstitute
receipt ofthenotice, demand, request orcommunication sent.  Anynotice, request,  
demand, direction orother communication sentbycable, telex, telecopy, facsimile orfax
mustbeconfirmed within forty-eight (48) hours byletter mailed ordelivered asspecified
inthisSection. 

21. CONFLICT OFINTEREST ANDPOLITICAL REFORM ACT
OBLIGATIONS.  During thetermofthisAgreement, theCONSULTANT shallnot
perform services ofanykindforanyperson orentitywhose interests conflict inanyway
with thoseoftheCITYOFLEMON GROVE.  TheCONSULTANT alsoagrees nottospecify
anyproduct, treatment, process ormaterial fortheproject inwhich theCONSULTANT
hasamaterial financial interest, either direct orindirect, without firstnotifying theCITY
ofthat fact.  TheCONSULTANT shallatalltimes comply with thetermsofthePolitical
Reform ActandtheLemon Grove Conflict ofInterest Code.  TheCONSULTANT shall

PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 9



immediately disqualify itselfandshallnotuse itsofficial position toinfluence inanyway
anymatter coming before theCITY inwhich theCONSULTANT hasafinancial interest
asdefinedin Government Code Section 87103.  TheCONSULTANT represents thatithas
noknowledge ofanyfinancial interests thatwould require ittodisqualify itself fromany
matter onwhich itmight perform services fortheCITY.    

Ifchecked, theCONSULTANT shall comply withallofthereporting
requirements ofthePolitical Reform ActandtheCITY OFLEMON GROVE Conflict of
Interest Code.  Specifically, theCONSULTANT shall fileaStatement ofEconomic
Interests with theCityClerkoftheCITY OFLEMON GROVE inatimely manner onforms
which theCONSULTANT shallobtain fromtheCityClerk. 

TheCONSULTANT shall bestrictly liable totheCITY foralldamages, costs
orexpenses theCITY maysuffer byvirtueofanyviolation ofthisParagraph 21bythe
CONSULTANT.  

22. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.  

A. Computation ofTime Periods.Ifanydateortimeperiod provided
forinthisAgreement isorendsonaSaturday, Sunday orfederal, stateorlegalholiday,  
thensuchdateshall automatically beextended until5:00p.m. Pacific Timeofthenext
daywhich isnotaSaturday, Sunday orfederal, stateorlegalholiday.  

B. Counterparts. ThisAgreement maybeexecuted inmultiple
counterparts, eachofwhich shallbedeemed anoriginal, butallofwhich, together, shall
constitute butoneandthesame instrument. 

C. Captions.  Anycaptions to, orheadings of, thesections or
subsections ofthisAgreement aresolely fortheconvenience oftheparties hereto, arenot
apartofthisAgreement, andshallnotbeusedforthe interpretation ordetermination of
thevalidity ofthisAgreement oranyprovision hereof.  

D. NoObligations toThird Parties.  Except asotherwise expressly
provided herein, theexecution anddelivery ofthisAgreement shallnotbedeemed to
confer anyrights upon, orobligate anyoftheparties hereto, toanyperson orentity other
thantheparties hereto. 

E. Exhibits andSchedules.TheExhibits andSchedules attached hereto
arehereby incorporated herein bythisreference forallpurposes. 

F. Amendment tothisAgreement.  ThetermsofthisAgreement may
notbemodified oramended except byaninstrument inwriting executed byeachofthe
parties hereto.  

G. Waiver. Thewaiver orfailure toenforce anyprovision ofthis
Agreement shallnotoperate asawaiver ofanyfuture breach ofanysuchprovision orany
other provision hereof.  

PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 10



H. Applicable Law.  ThisAgreement shallbegoverned byandconstrued
inaccordance with thelawsoftheStateofCalifornia. 

I. Entire Agreement. ThisAgreement supersedes anyprioragree- 
ments, negotiations andcommunications, oralorwritten, andcontains theentire
agreement between theparties astothesubject matter hereof.  Nosubsequent agreement,  
representation, orpromise made byeither partyhereto, orbyortoanemployee, officer,  
agentorrepresentative ofanypartyhereto shall beofanyeffect unless itisinwriting and
executed bytheparty tobebound thereby. 

J. Successors andAssigns.ThisAgreement shallbebinding uponand
shall inure tothebenefit ofthesuccessors andassigns oftheparties hereto.  

K. Construction.  Theparties acknowledge andagree that (i) eachparty
isofequal bargaining strength, (ii) eachpartyhasactively participated inthedrafting,  
preparation andnegotiation ofthisAgreement, (iii) each suchpartyhasconsulted with
orhashadtheopportunity toconsult with itsown, independent counsel andsuchother
professional advisors assuchpartyhasdeemed appropriate, relative toanyandall
matters contemplated under thisAgreement, (iv) eachpartyandsuchparty’scounsel and
advisors have reviewed thisAgreement, (v) each partyhasagreed toenter intothis
Agreement following suchreview andtherendering ofsuchadvice, and (vi) anyruleor
construction totheeffect thatambiguities aretoberesolved against thedrafting party
shallnotapply intheinterpretation ofthisAgreement, oranyportions hereof, orany
amendments hereto.  

INWITNESS WHEREOF, theparties hereto haveexecuted this
Agreement onthedateandyear firstabove written.   

CITYOFLEMON GROVE INFRASTRUCTURE ENGINEERING
CORPORATION
Corporation–signatures of2corporate officers)  
Partnership – onesignature) 
Soleproprietorship – onesignature)  

By:  ________________________ By:  ____________________________  

Lydia Romero  ( Name)  

CityManager ____________________________  
Title)   

APPROVED ASTOFORM:  

By:  ____________________________  

Kristen Steinke ( Name)  
CityAttorney

Title)  
PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 11



Exhibit “A”  

PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 12



PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 13



PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 14



PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 15



PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 16



PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 17



PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 18



PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 19



PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 20



PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 21



PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 22



PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 23



PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 24



PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 25



PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 26



PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 27



PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 28



PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 29



PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 30



PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 31



PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 32



PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 33



PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 34



PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 35



PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 36



PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 37



PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 38



PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 39



PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 40



PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 41



PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 42



PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 43



PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 44



PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 45



PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 46



PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 47



PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 48



PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 49



PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 50



PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 51



PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 52



PSA for Inspection Services with IEC
October 6, 2020
Page | 53



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

CITYCOUNCIL
STAFFREPORT

ItemNo. 1.F

Meeting Date: October 6, 2020

Submitted to: Honorable Mayor andMembers oftheCityCouncil

Department:Public Works Department

StaffContact:Mike James, Assistant CityManager/ Public Works Director

mjames@lemongrove. ca.gov

ItemTitle: StreetMaintenance Project – 6818Federal Boulevard

Recommended Action:  Adopt aresolution approving thestreet maintenance project
at6818 Federal Boulevard.    

Summary: ThePublic Works Department maintains approximately 70lanemilesof
streets throughout theCity.  Street maintenance activities include digouts, filingpotholes,  
repairing/replacing berms, andrepairing/replacing drainage swales.  Thepublic right-of- 
way located at6818 Federal Boulevard wasidentified byCitystaffasanareathat requires
immediate street repairdue tovehicle traffic, exposure tostreet drainage anddrainage
runoff, andweathering.  Thearea islocated onaregional arterial andservices asamain
thoroughfare intothecity, while alsoserving asthemain entrance tobusinesses on
Federal Boulevard.  

Citystaff created acostestimate, perLemon Grove Municipal Code3.24.120, which states
thatCitystaffmayperform work iftheconstruction project isless than $60,000.   
However, theCityCouncil remains theapproving authority forallconstruction projects
valued inexcess of $5,000.  Thecostproposal shows atotalestimated project costof
9,298.99.  Yet, theactual cost incurred isestimated tonotexceed $5,469.  That amount

equals thecost formaterials andmilling services.  

Staff recommends that theCityCouncil adopts aresolution approving thestreet
maintenance project located at6818 Federal Boulevard bycitystaffatatotalproject cost
estimate nottoexceed $9,298.99.    

Environmental Review:    

Notsubject toreviewNegative Declaration

Categorical Exemption, Section Mitigated Negative Declaration

Federal Blvd. Street Maintenance
October 6, 2020

Page | 1



Fiscal Impact:Thetotal project costestimate equals $9,298.99.  Sufficient funds are
available inFund14TransNet (Drainage - Congestion Relief) account number 14-00- 
00-7280.    

Public Notification:  None.  

StaffRecommendation:  Adoptaresolution approving thestreet maintenance project
at6818 Federal Boulevard.   

Attachment:  
Attachment A – Resolution

Federal Blvd. Street Maintenance
October 6, 2020

Page | 2



Attachment A

RESOLUTION NO.2020 -   

ARESOLUTION OFTHECITY COUNCIL OFTHECITYOFLEMON GROVE,  
CALIFORNIA, APPROVING THESTREET MAINTENANCE PROJECT

LOCATED AT6818 FEDERAL BOULEVARD

WHEREAS, theCityofLemon Grove maintains approximately 70lanemilesof

streets throughout theCity; and

WHEREAS, the6818Federal Boulevard requires street repair duetovehicle

traffic, exposure tostreet drainage anddrainage runoff, andweathering; and

WHEREAS, perLemon Grove Municipal Code3.24.120, Citystaffmayperform

construction projects ifthetotal valueoftheproject islessthan $60,000; and

WHEREAS, the Cityowns thenecessary equipment andstaffhasnecessary

expertise tocomplete theproject inthefastest andmost costefficient manner; and

WHEREAS, itisinthebest interest oftheCity, that theproject isapproved to

improve thestreet alongaregional arterial roadway intheCity.    

NOW, THEREFORE, BEITRESOLVED that theCityCouncil oftheCityof

Lemon Grove, California, hereby:    

1. Approves Citystaff toperform theStreet Maintenance Project at6818Federal
Boulevard; and

2. Establishes aproject budget nottoexceed $9,298.99funded fromaccount number
14-00-00-7280; and

3. Directs theCityManager, orherdesignee, tonegotiation, execute andmanage all
project documents.    

Federal Blvd. Street Maintenance
October 6, 2020

Page | 3



Attachment A

PASSED ANDADOPTED onOctober  , 2020, theCityCouncil oftheCity

ofLemon Grove, California, adopted Resolution No. _______, passed bythefollowing

vote: 

AYES: 

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  

Racquel Vasquez, Mayor

Attest:  

Shelley Chapel, MMC, CityClerk

Approved astoForm:  

KristenSteinke, CityAttorney

Federal Blvd. Street Maintenance
October 6, 2020

Page | 4



Exhibit 1

Federal Blvd. Street Maintenance
October 6, 2020

Page | 5



Federal Blvd. Street Maintenance
October 6, 2020

Page | 6



Federal Blvd. Street Maintenance
October 6, 2020

Page | 7



Federal Blvd. Street Maintenance
October 6, 2020

Page | 8



Federal Blvd. Street Maintenance
October 6, 2020

Page | 9



Federal Blvd. Street Maintenance
October 6, 2020

Page | 10



Federal Blvd. Street Maintenance
October 6, 2020

Page | 11



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

DISTRICTBOARD
STAFFREPORT

ItemNo.  

Meeting Date: October 6, 2020

Submitted to: Honorable Mayor andMembers oftheSanitation District Board

Department: Finance

StaffContact:Molly Brennan,Administrative Services Director

mbrennan@lemongrove. ca.gov

ItemTitle: 115TrustTransfer from Sanitation District

Recommended Action: 
Authorize thetransfer of $560,199from theSanitation District tothe115Trust for
investment towards future CalPERS obligations. 

Summary: 
TheSanitation District recently received $560,199fromtheCityofSanDiego
Metropolitan Wastewater Department asarefund fortreatment charges paidbythe
Sanitation District infiscal year 2017-2018. Staff recommends investing thecash inthe
115Trust forfuture CalPERS obligations.  

Discussion: 
TheLemon Grove Sanitation District isamember agency oftheMetro WastewaterJoint
Powers Authority, which partners with theCityofSanDiego Metropolitan Wastewater
Department forwastewater treatment. Each member agency paysashareofthecost for
transportation andtreatment totheCityofSanDiego based onestimated flows. TheCity
ofSanDiego thenreconciles whateachmember agency paid inaprior fiscal year tothe
actual expenses andflows. Insome years theSanitation District hashadtopayadditional
transportation andtreatment feesandinsome years theDistrict hasreceived arefund.  

TheLemon Grove Sanitation District’sannual flowestimates arereviewed byDexter
Wilson Engineering staff toverify theappropriate amount and logic. Thelastestimate
reduced theannual flowfrom 240millions ofgallons perday (MGD) to180MGD. That
change willnotbe reflected intheCityofSanDiego reconciliation forafewmore years,  
since they review three years later.  

Duetotheunpredictability ofthereconciliation payment orrefund, noestimate is
included intheannual Sanitation District budget related tothereconciliation. TheCityof
SanDiego iscurrently onanannual schedule toreconcile thefiscal year three yearsprior.  



InSeptemberof 2020the City received aone-timecheck for $560,189fromtheCityof
SanDiego forthefiscal year2017-2018reconciliation. 

Staff recommends that thiscashisdeposited intotheDistrict’s115Trust forinvestment
towards future pension payments. AsofJune30, 2020 theSanitation District’snet
pension liability is $2,293,833 andthecurrent balance oftheDistrict’s115Trustis
1,189,472.09. Once thecash isdeposited intothe115Trust itremains within the

District’sinvestment control, but mayonlybespentonpension related expenses. The
District’scurrent Pension RateStabilization Program Investment & Funding Policy
dictates that thedeposit willbeinvested intheModerately Conservative portfolio, the
same portfolio thecurrent trustbalance isinvested in.   

TheDistrict’snetpension liability asofJune30, 2020doesnotyet include thefiscal year
2019-2020 (FY19-20) CalPERS interest earning shortfall, therefore wearealready aware
thetotal liability asofJune30, 2021willbelarger. InFY19-20CalPERS earned 4.7% in
interest, but theannual benchmark is7%. When there isashortfall between actual
earnings and the7% goal, employers arerequired tomakeupthedifference overatwenty
year amortization period. TheFY19-20shortfall willbegin tobeback-filledbyemployers
intheirannual unfunded accrued liability payments toCalPERS inJulyofFY2022-2023.  

Asareminder, investing thecash ina115Trust, rather thaninanextra payment directly
toCalPERS orkeeping thefunds intheDistrict’sandCity’spooled cashinvestments,  
maintains localcontrol ofthe investment while providing theopportunity forinvestment
inoptions thathavethepotential togenerate higher interest earnings. TheDistrict’s
initial deposit intothe115 Trust wasmade inOctober 2018 andasecond deposit was
made inDecember 2019when theDistrict received theFY 2016-2017 reconciliation
reimbursement fromSanDiego. Over thelastyear, September 2019 – August 2020, the
115Trust hasreturned interest earnings of8.63%.  

IftheDistrict doesnotauthorize thetransfer tothe115Trust andinstead decides tokeep
thecashwith theCity’spooled investments, itwillbetransferred totheLocal Agency
Investment Fund (LAIF). InFY19-20LAIFannual yieldwas1.934% andtheratesare
currently dropping. InAugust 2020, themonthly LAIF interest ratehaddropped to
0.784%. Although therewill bevery little interest earned inLAIF, thefunds would notbe
restricted tofunding pension obligations. Staff believes theDistrict hasenough
unrestricted cashonhandtofundon-going activities andwillnotbenegatively impacted
byrestricting $560,199. Inaddition, anyinterest earnings from the115Trustwill reduce
theamount ofmoney needed fromtherate-payers tofundthepension obligation. 

Environmental Review: 

Notsubject toreviewNegative Declaration

Categorical Exemption, Section Mitigated Negative Declaration



Fiscal Impact:TheSanitation District’snetposition (fundbalance) will increase atthe
endofthefiscal year, since thecashtransferred into theTrust remains anassetofthe
Sanitation District. Additional interest earnings areanticipated.  

Public Notification:None

Attachments: None

StaffRecommendation:   
Authorize thetransfer of $560,199fromtheSanitation District tothe115Trust for
investment towards future CalPERS obligations.  



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

CITYCOUNCIL
STAFFREPORT

Item No.  

Meeting Date: October 6, 2020

Submitted to: Honorable Mayor and Members oftheCityCouncil

Department:   

Staff Contact: Christian Olivas, Management Analyst

colivas@lemongrove. ca.gov

Item Title: Community Development Block Grant Coronavirus Funds - New

Allocation

Recommended Action:  Discuss and provide direction tostaff ontheuseofCommunity
Development Block Grant Coronavirus new fundallocations.  

Summary:  The City Council will hold adiscussion onhow toallocate new Community
Development Block Grant Coronavirus funds (CDBG-CV).  The background and discussion
sections below provide information regarding theCDBG-CVallocation process, describes
the current useofCDBG-CVfunds, and provides the eligible expenses under thenew CDBG- 
CVallocation.   

Background:  The County ofSan Diego currently serves asagrantee for the San Diego
Urban County, afederally designated area, that includes the unincorporated areaofSan
Diego County andallnon-entitlement cities within theCounty that choose toparticipate in
theCDBG Program.  Asanon-entitlement jurisdiction, theCityofLemon ofGrove must
partner with theCounty ofSan Diego toreceive CDBG funds.  

OnMarch 27, 2020, thePresident, Donald J. Trump, signed the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and
Economic Security Act (CARES Act), Public Law 116-136 that makes available $5billion in
supplemental CDBG-CV funding toprevent, prepare for, and respond tocoronavirus. The
County ofSan Diegowas awarded $4,265,000 million inCDBG-CVgrant funds forFY2019- 
2020.  Under thesupplemental CDBG-CVfunds, theCityofLemon Grove was eligible to
receive anallocation of $60,339.75. OnMay 19, 2020, theCity Council adopted aresolution
authorizing the submittal oftheCDBG-CVapplication totheCounty ofSan Diego toreceive
the eligible allocation tofundweekly food distribution events.   

Discussion:    OnSeptember 24, 2020, theCounty ofSan Diego informed City staff that
Lemon Grove hasbeen awarded anadditional, estimated allocation of $162,371 inCDBG- 
CVfunds. The County stated that toprovide fuller local control, all funding will be

CDBG-CVFunds
October6, 2020
Page | 1



distributed proportionately among theCDBG non-entitlement cities.  Assuch, theCounty
usedthesame CDBG allocation formula tocalculate thenew CDBG-CVfunding.   

Under HUD guidelines, CDBG-CVeligible activities, include the following:  

Food Distribution and/orDelivery;  
Emergency Rental andUtility Assistance;  
Small Business Assistance;  
Homeless Outreach Services, including housing vouchers, transportation andmental
health teams;  
Child CareAssistance;  
COVID-19Testing

Staff reached out totheother cities inthecounty toinquire astohowthey used their initial
CDBGCV funding allocation.  Below areresponses received:  

ElCajon homeless shelter space, community food, and rental/utility assistance
LaMesa homeless pandemic services
Poway senior meal preparation anddelivery through aprivate contractor
San Marcos rental assistance program through North County LifeLine and
Interfaith Services
Vista Rental andUtility Assistance

Staff suggests theCity Council consider allocating funding totheSaturday drive through
food distribution event for theremainder of2020 and allocate theremaining funds to
enhance ourcurrent homeless outreach program inpartnership with Home Start Inc,.   

Based onthedirection from theCity Council, staff will return atthenext City Council
Meeting tocodify thenew CDBG-CVallocations.   

Environmental Review:  

Not subject toreview Negative Declaration

Categorical Exemption, Section Mitigated Negative Declaration

Fiscal Impact: None.  

Public Notification: None.  

Staff Recommendation: Discuss andprovide direction tostaff ontheuseofnew
Community Development Block Grant Coronavirus funding.    

Attachment: None.  

CDBG-CVFunds
October6, 2020
Page | 2


